FINAL REPORT DIPA BIOTROP 2021

Determination of stocking density on vannamei (*Litopenaeus vannamei*) fingerling with biofloc technology for improving growth and feed efficiency

(1. Dr. Ichsan Achmad Fauzi)
 (2. Shella Marlinda, M.Si)
 (3. Feredik Djonatan Ngili)
 (4. Yana)

MINISTRY OF EDUCATION AND CULTURE SECRETARY GENERAL SEAMEO SEAMOLEC SOUTHASIAN REGIONAL CENTER OF TROPHICAL BIOLOGY (SEAMEO BIOTROP) 2021

APPROVAL OF RESEARCH PROPOSAL

1.	Tittle	: Determination of stocking density on
		vannamei (Litopenaeus vannamei) fingerling
		with biofloc technology for improving growth
		and feed efficiency
2.	Coordinator	
	a. Name	: Dr. Ichsan Achmad Fauzi
	b. Sex	: Male
	c. Position	: Lecturer
3.	Institution	
	a. Name	: IPB University
	b. Address	Ialan Agatis Babakan Kec Dramaga Bogor
	c. Phone/Fax.	
	d. Email	: (0251) 8622907
4.	Period	: 9 months

5. Research cost proposed :

Bogor, 29 November 2021

Approved by,

Plt. Manager Research Hub Innovation Department SEAMEO BIOTROP Coordinator

Auton

Ir. Sri Widayanti, M.Si NIP 196708222007012001 Dr. Ichsan Achmad Fauzi NIP 19850906 201504 1 001

Approved by, Director of SEAMEO BIOTROP

Dr. Zulhamsyah Imran, S.Pi, M.Si NIP 19700731 199702 1 001

TABLE OF CONTENTS

TABLE OF CONTENT	. iii
LIST OF TABLES LIST OF FIGURE	. iv . v 1
1.1 Background	1
1.2 Research Purposes	2
1.3 Research Output	2
2. BENEFIT AND IMPORTANCE OF RESEARCH	3
3. METHODS	4
3.1 Preparation of Culture Unit and Biofloc	4
3.2 Shrimp Rearing	4
3.3 Research Parameters and Data Analysis	5
4. RESULTS AND DISCUSSION	7
5. CONCLUSION AND SUGGESTION	13
6. REFFERENCES	14
APPENDIX	13

i

LIST OF TABLES

Table 1. Feed consumption (Σ feed),	FCR, EP and SR of vannamei for 30 days of rearing 7
Table 2. Parameters of water quality	

LIST OF FIGURES

Figure 1. Absolute growth of vannamei between group	7
Figure 2. Feed consumption of shrimp between group	8
Figure 3. Feed conversion ratio (FCR) of shrimp between group	8
Figure 4. Feed efficiency of shrimp between group	9
Figure 5. Survival rate (SR) of shrimp between group	9
Figure 6. Floc volume between group1	0

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 Background

Culture of vannamei shrimp Litopenaeus vannamei has received a great attention in terms of economic benefits, for which this requires superior quality and sufficient quantity of the juvenile for grow-out culture. Currently, marine resources are intensively researched for marine culture activities using floating net cages. This attempt also resolves the shrinkage of land space for the farming. Shrimp culture using floating net cages is applicable and requires high quality seeds, locally known as benur, which are resistant to stressors. To meet the seed demand, seedling stages need to be perfectly prepared, using intensive culture system. However, seedling phase with high stocking density is undesirable, requiring more feed. In fact, some of the feeds often remains uneaten, becoming debris; while some is consumed and converted into biomass and excreted as ammonia and feces. The excreta and debris are deposited in culture medium, which provokes increment of nitrogen concentration as represented by ammonia which is toxic to the shrimps (Avnimelech dan Ritvo, 2003). Significant attempts to reduce ammonia are inevitable, including water exchange. However, it requires enormous quantity of water and potentially pollute environment when the wastewater is untreated. Other attempt is biofloc culture system, enabling to manage water quality in intensive aquaculture.

To date, biofloc technology (BFT) has occurred as an outstanding ecofriendly technology capable of minimizing the sewages from culture activities (Avnimelech, 2006; Avnimelech, 2007). As an exceptionally ecofriendly technology, BFT is based on assimilation of inorganic nitrogen (ammonia, nitrite, and nitrate) promoted by microbes (heterotroph bacteria) in culture medium as their nutrition source (De Schryver et al., 2008). Biofloc is a suspension in water, which is present as phytoplankton, bacteria, viable aggregrate, organic materials and bacteria eater (Avnimelech, 2007). Biofloc technology is developed to improve and control water quality in culture unit, biosecurity, promote efficient use of water and feed (Avnimelech, 2012). This microbial floc contains protein (19,0-40,6%), fat (0,46-11,6%) and ash (7-38,5%), being a source of nutrients for cultured species (Tacon, 2000; Ekasari, 2008). Avnimelech (1999) stated that bioflock system contained heterotroph bacteria forming flocs that could be utilized by aquatic species; thus, this is proven to reduce inorganic nitrogen and replace feed protein. The shrimp feed often contains more protein than carbohydrate, for which carbon supply from feed is low, with C/N ratio of 9:1. On the other hand, bacteria need 20 carbon for 1 nitrogen assimilated (C/N = 20:1). The low C/N ratio in feed adversely affect the growth of heterotroph bacteria. Therefore, in

intensive fish farming, organic carbon is added to maintain C/N ratio of 20-30 (McIntosh, 2000; Brune et al., 2003). • The use of biofloc culture system undeniably needs to consider a stocking density in order to produce optimum result, since this novel aquaculture technology enables to control harmful nitrogenous substances produced in the culture pond. Principally, the intensive fish culture shall optimize C/N ratio (McIntosh, 2000; Brune et al., 2003). Therefore, stocking density and the quantity of discharged components in the culture system are crucial for performance of biofloc system. In this regard, additional carbon can be easily added through various sources. A aquaculture system with high density produces more discharged components, which forms more abundant floc capable ot acting as source of feed. This leads to a higher feed conversion ratio and a lower feed cost.

1.2 Research Purposes

This research aimed to determine a stocking density of vannamei shrimp in fingerling with biofloc system to optimize growth and feed supply.

1.3 Research Output

The research is designed to obtain following outputs:

- 1. The output of research is the optimum level of stocking density for shrimp culture under biofloc technology.
- 2. A research publication in either reputable national journal or Scopus-indexed journa.

2. BENEFIT AND IMPORTANCE OF RESEARCH

Performance of biofloc system relies on its ability to control water quality or provision of extra feed sources for microorganism. To ensure the technology works efficiently, it is important to manage the composition of nitrogen and carbon as source of main nutrients in the biofloc system. In this work, carbon source originates from shrimp disposal waste, which is cheap and abundant. Considering that production of waste linearly relates to density of shrimp, there is a need to find the best level of shrimp density in biofloc system.

3. METHODS

3.1 Preparation of Culture Unit and Biofloc

Shrimp rearing was carried out in aquarium $(100 \times 60 \times 80 \text{ cm})$ sterilized using chlorine (100 ppm) and rinsed with clean water. It was then filled with water up to height of 40 cm (equal to 72 L) and aerated at 5 spots. Inoculated bacteria EM4 at dose of 0.16 ml/Aquaria and ammonium sulfat at dose of 4 gram / akuaria. To increase carbon concentration, molase was added directly to the aquarium (once per day, after 2 h of feeding) at 10.00 am. Quantification of carbon which was required for prompting floc formation by heterotroph bacteria followed previous equation by De Schryver *et al.* (2008).

3.2. Shrimp Rearing

Vannamei PL16 (average weight of $0,03\pm0,04$ g/shrimp and size of $1,60\pm1,69$ cm/shrimp) were reared at density of 458 shrimp/m² (equal to 110 shrimp/aquarium) for 28 days. They were fed 3 times per day (08.00, 12.00, and 16.00 WIB) at feeding rate of 25%. Experiment followed completely randomized design consisting of 4 treatment groups (A = control; B = C/N ratio 10; C = C/N ratio 20; D = C/N ratio 30) with 3 replications. Commercial feed containing protein of 40% was applied (Fengli – Matahari Sakti). Position of rearing containers was randomly distributed.

Treatement A = stocking density 56 shrimp/ aquarium Treatement B = stocking density 68 shrimp/ aquarium Treatement C = stocking density 80 shrimp/ aquarium

Treatment A is control with stocking density 56 shrimp/ aquarium. Treatment A referred to shrimp culture in absence of molase as external carbon source. Water was syphoned 3 times per day in control groups. In treated groups, shrimp were fed with feed containing 40% of protein and GE (Gross Energy) was defined as followsL 1 g protein = 5,6 kcal GE, 1 g fat = 9,4 kcal GE, 1 g carbohydrate/NFE = 4,1 kkal GE (Watanabe, 1988).

3.3. Research Parameters and Data Analysis

Growth of shrimp (weight and length) was observed 2 weeks (per 14 days), and viable shrimp was totally counted at the end of experiment. Weight and length of the shrimp was key indicator for determining amount of daily feeding, regarding the survival rate. Several research parameters were collected as follows: floc volume, absolute growth, feed

efficiency, survival rate, FCR. Chemical analysis was also carried out during 30-day experiment.

3.3.1 Floc Volume

Floc volume (FV) represented the density of floc particles in water as described by Avnimelech (2012). Water sample (50 mL) was filled to a 50 mL-conical cone and left for 30 min to allow floc accumulating on the bottom of the cone. FV (mL/L) was determined as follows:

$$FV = \frac{\text{floc volume}}{\text{water volume}} \times 1000$$

3.3.2. Relative Growth

Relative growth (RG) presented biomass gain of shrimp during experiment. The calculation followed the equation below (Acarli & Lok, 2008):

$$PR = \frac{lnLt - lnL0}{t}$$

where

RG : relative growth (%)

Lt : average length at the end of experiment (cm)

Lo : average length at the initial of experiment (cm)

T : period of experiment (day)

3.3.3. Feed Efficiency

Feed efficiency (FE) constituted a comparison between shrimp biomass and feed applied during experiment. FE was determined as follows (Takeuchi, 1988):

$$E = \frac{(wt + wd) - w0}{F} \times 100$$

where:

EP : Feed efficiency (%)

F : total amount of feed (g)

Wo : initial shrimp weight (g)

Wd : total weight of died shrimp (g)

3.3.4. Survival Rate

Survival rate (SR) indicated percentage of shrimp harvested compared with initial stock, determined using formula by Goddard (1996) as follows:

$$SR = \frac{N_t}{N_0} \times 100$$

where:

SR : survival rate (%)

Nt : number of shrimps harvested

No : number of shrimps stocked

3.3.5. Proximate Analysis

Proximate analysis included crude protein, crude fat, ash and water content, carried out at the initial and end of experiment. Shrimp (20 g) in each experimental unit was used for proximate analysis.

3.3.6. Water Quality Measurement

Water quality parameters were observed, i.e. dissolved oxygen (DO), pH, temperature, ammonia (NH₃), nitrate, nitrite, salinity and phosphate. Daily observed parameters included DO, pH, salinity, measured using DO meter, pH meter and refractometer, respectively. Meanwhile, other parameters (ammonia, nitrate, nitrite) were measured two times: initial and end of experiment

3.3.7. Data Analysis

Experimental design was arranged according to completely randomized design (3 treatments, 3 replications). Data were tabulated in Microsoft Excel 2013 and statistically evaluated in SPSS 22.0. To check the effect of treatment on each research parameter, independent sample t-test (p=0.05) was applied using SPSS 16.0.

4. RESULTS AND DISCUSSION

4.1 Results

Growth of shrimp reared for 30 day in the biofloc system is presented in Figure 1. Treatment A (56 shrimp / aquarium) resulted in better result compared with treatment B (68 shrimp / aquarium) and C (68 shrimp / aquarium). As depicted in Figure 1, fish growth differed greatly between treatments, i.e. 74.50%, 70.99%, 68.06%, respectively.



Figure 1. Absolute growth of vannamei between groups

Table 1. Feed consumption (Σ feed), FCR, EP, and SR of vannamei (*Litopennaeus*

Group	Σ feed (g)	FCR	EP (%)	SR (%)	
А	310.83±2.62	1.12±0.12	89.38±7.83	83.93±4.72	
В	371.54±8.77	1.14 ± 0.07	88.14±5.12	72.55 ± 7.25	
С	426.87±4.90	1.27 ± 0.01	78.72±0.79	74.17±14.05	

vannamei) for 30 days of rearing.

Note

1. A = 56 shrimp; B = 68 shrimp; C = 80 shrimp;

2. FCR: feed convention ratio; EP: feed efficiency; SR : Survival Rate;

3. Different superscripts in similar column represent significant difference at P<0.05.



Figure 2. Feed consumption of shrimp between groups



Figure 3. FCR of shrimp between groups



100.00 90.00 83₇93 80.00 74 17 72,55 70.00 Survival rate (%) 60.00 50.00 40.00 30.00 20.00 10.00 0.00 C (80) A (56) B (68) Group

Figure 4. Feed efficiency of shrimp between groups

Figure 5. Survival Rate (SR) of shrimp between groups



Figure 6. Floc volume between groups

The highest feed consumption occurs in group C, reaching 426.87 g, while the lowest is attributed to group A reaching 310.83 g. The greatest FCR is found in group C (1.27). The highest feed efficiency is found in group A (89.38%), meanwhile the lowest is found in group C (78.72%). In terms of survival rate, group A produces the highest value (83.93%), but group B produces the lowest (72.55%), as described in Figure 2-5. Figure 6 exhibits floc volume. The volume increases gradually, in which group A reaches the highest value. Table 2 presents water quality recorded during 30 days of experiment. The result suggests that water quality in the biofloc system complies with standard level for shrimp farming. Several parameters, e.g. TAN, nitrite, nitrate, are above the recommended level (Table 2).

No	Variables		Acceptable value		
		Α	В	С	
	Temperature				
1	(°C)	25.4-26.7	24.7-25.3	23.2-24.5	25-32
2	DO (mg/L)	6.23-7.87	6.73-7.73	6.43-7.70	5-7
3	pН	5.70-7.23	5.70-7.23	5.10-7.17	7-9
4	TAN (mg/L)	1.5 -3	1.5-5	1.5-5	<1
5	Nitrate (mg/L)	0-100	12.5-100	0-100	<1
6	Nitrite (mg/L)	< 0.3-33	0.3-33	<0.3-33	<1
7	Salinity (ppm)	30	30	30	25-35

Table 2. Water quality parameters

4.2 Discussion

Despite no significant difference on growth parameter between treatments, the absolute value for this parameter showed a negative correlation between growth and stocking density. Liu *et al.* (2017) reported a negative correlation between growth and density, which resulted in 40% reduction of growth. In addition, Schveitzer *et al.* (2013) applied combination of density and substrate, showing that stocking dendity did not affect growth performance. Based on previous works, there is a possibility that growth performance in biofloc system depends on supporting factors of the system such as water quality parameters (e.g. ammonia, nitrite, and nitrate). Similarly, feed conversion did not differ significantly among groups Although there is no significant difference, the absolute value showed that higher level of stocking density would reduce feed efficiency.

In addition, survival rate was also not different significantly between treatments. However, we can observe that the highest survival rate corresponded to the lowest stocking density, with group B and C reaching up to 72-74%. This suggests that data are not sufficient to reveal the effects of stocking density on survival rate. In this case, the survival rate is in the acceptable range. The density used is at tolerable level for shrimp; and no mortality is found due to poor water quality.

Meanwhile, floc volume increases drastically at day 8 - 11. After this, it decreases and increases again till day 29. Such increase in day 8 to day 11 was affected by addition of ammonium sulfate which enables to accelerate formulation of floc. Despite decreased, the production of floc increases remarkably as more concentration of ammonia nitrite and nitrate. The data also revealed that formation of floc increases gradually as more nitrogen

was produced in culture system. However, difference in floc volume is not observed between treatments. This means that the system can still perform at higher density.

The experiment concludes that biofloc system can facilitate shrimp culture in aquarium with density up to 144 shrimp/m². Generally, most shrimp farmers applied density of 80-200 shrimp/m², which suggests that the current technique is at good range in Indonesia.

5. CONCLUSION AND SUGGESTION

5.1 Conclusion

The research revealed that biofloc technology in aquarium can be filled with shrimp at density up to 144 shrimp/m². This conforms with farmer's practice in Indonesia using density of 80-200 shrimp/m², suggesting that the biofloc system is applicable with shrimp farming in Indonesia.

5.2 Suggestion

The research future can determination ratio C/N for biofloc technology.

6. REFERENCES

- Arai, S. 1996. "Studies on Functional Foods in Japan--State of the Art." *Bioscience, biotechnology, and biochemistry* 60(1): 9–15. http://www.tandfonline.com/doi/abs/10.1271/bbb.60.9 (May 30, 2016).
- Barange, M. et al. 2014. "Impacts of Climate Change on Marine Ecosystem Production in Societies Dependent on Fisheries." *Nature Climate Change*.
- Barziza, Daniel E, J Alejandro Buentello, and Delbert M Gatlin III. 2000. "Dietary Arginine Requirement of Juvenile Red Drum (*Sciaenops Ocellatus*) Based on Weight Gain and Feed Efficiency." *The Journal of Nutrition* 130(7): 1796–99.
- Baydoun, Anwar R., Richard G. Bogle, Jeremy D. Pearson, and Giovanni E. Mann. 1994.
 "Discrimination between Citrulline and Arginine Transport in Activated Murine Macrophages: Inefficient Synthesis of NO from Recycling of Citrulline to Arginine." *British Journal of Pharmacology* 112(2): 487–92.
- Brander, K. M. 2007. "Global Fish Production and Climate Change." *Proceedings of the National Academy of Sciences.*
- Breuillard, C., L. Cynober, and C. Moinard. 2015. "Citrulline and Nitrogen Homeostasis: An Overview." *Amino Acids* 47(4): 685–91.
- Breuillard, Charlotte et al. 2017. "Nitric Oxide Production by Peritoneal Macrophages from Aged Rats: A Short Term and Direct Modulation by Citrulline." *Biochimie* 133: 66–73.
- Buentello, J. Alejandro, and Delbert M Gatlin III. 2001. "Effects of Elevated Dietary Arginine on Resistance of Channel Catfish to Exposure to *Edwardsiella Ictaluri*." *Journal of Aquatic Animal Health* 13(3): 194–201. http://dx.doi.org/10.1577/1548-8667(2001)013%3C0194:EOEDAO%3E2.0.CO;2.
- Buentello, JA, and Delbert M Gatlin III. 1999. "Nitric Oxide Production in Activated Macrophages from Channel Catfish (*Ictalurus Punctatus*): Influence of Dietary Arginine and Culture Media." *Aquaculture* 179(1–4): 513–21.
- Burge, Colleen A. et al. 2014. "Climate Change Influences on Marine Infectious Diseases: Implications for Management and Society." *Annual Review of Marine Science* 6(1): 249–77. http://www.annualreviews.org/doi/10.1146/annurev-marine-010213-135029.

Cheng, Zhenyan, J. Alejandro Buentello, and Delbert M Gatlin III. 2011. "Effects of Dietary

Arginine and Glutamine on Growth Performance, Immune Responses and Intestinal Structure of Red Drum, <i>Sciaenops Ocellatus<i/>i>." *Aquaculture* 319(1): 247–52. http://linkinghub.elsevier.com/retrieve/pii/S0044848611005059 (September 7, 2017).

- Cheng, Zhenyan, Delbert M Gatlin Iii, and Alejandro Buentello. 2012. "Dietary Supplementation of Arginine and/or Glutamine Influences Growth Performance, Immune Responses and Intestinal Morphology of Hybrid Striped Bass (Morone Chrysops × Morone Saxatilis)." Aquaculture 362–363(0): 39–43. http://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S0044848612004176.
- Chiu, Y N, R E Austic, and G L Rumsey. 1986. "Urea Cycle Activity and Arginine Formation in Rainbow Trout (*Salmo Gairdneri*)." *Journal of Nutrition* 116: 1640–50.
- Cochrane, K., C. de Young, D. Soto, and T. Bahri. 2009. "Climate Change Implications for Fisheries and Aquaculture: Overview of Current Scientific Knowledge." FAO Fisheries and Aquaculture Technical Paper (530, Rome, FAO): 1–212.
- Cohen, P.P, and M. Hayano. 1946. "The Conversion of Citrulline to Arginine (Transimination) by Tissue Slices and Homogenates." *The Journal of biological chemistry* 166(1): 239–50.
- Collins, Julie K. et al. 2007. "Watermelon Consumption Increases Plasma Arginine Concentrations in Adults." *Nutrition* 23(3): 261–66. http://linkinghub.elsevier.com/retrieve/pii/S0899900707000123 (November 29, 2016).
- Curis, E. et al. 2005. "Almost All about Citrulline in Mammals." *Amino Acids* 29(3): 177–205.
- Deutz, Nicolaas E P. 2008. "The 2007 ESPEN Sir David Cuthbertson Lecture: Amino Acids between and within Organs. The Glutamate-Glutamine-Citrulline-Arginine Pathway." *Clinical Nutrition* 27(3): 321–27.
- FAO. 2018. Fao.Org The State of Fisheries and Aquaculture in the World 2018.
- Fauzi, Ichsan Achmad et al. 2019. "Effects of Arginine Supplementation on Growth Performance and Plasma Arginine, Ornithine and Citrulline Dynamics of Rainbow Trout, Oncorhynchus Mykiss." Aquaculture Research.
- Fournier, V et al. 2003. "Excess Dietary Arginine Affects Urea Excretion but Does Not Improve N Utilisation in Rainbow Trout Oncorhynchus Mykiss and Turbot Psetta Maxima." Aquaculture 217(1–4): 559–76.

http://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/S0044848602004209 (January 22, 2016).

- Harvell, C. D. et al. 2002. "Climate Warming and Disease Risks for Terrestrial and Marine Biota." *Science* (*New York*, *N.Y.*) 296(5576): 2158–62. http://www.sciencemag.org/cgi/doi/10.1126/science.1063699.
- Herrero, Miguel, Alejandro Cifuentes, and Elena Ibanez. 2006. "Sub- and Supercritical Fluid Extraction of Functional Ingredients from Different Natural Sources: Plants, Food-by-Products, Algae and Microalgae - A Review." *Food Chemistry* 98(1): 136–48.
- Huggins, A.K., G. Skutsch, and E. Baldwin. 1969. "Ornithine-Urea Cycle Enzymes in Teleostean Fish." *Comparative Biochemistry and Physiology* 28(2): 587–602. http://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/pii/0010406X6992091X.
- IPCC. 2007. Genebra, Suíça *Climate Change 2007: Impacts, Adaptation and Vulnerability: Contribution of Working Group II to the Fourth Assessment Report of the Intergovernmental Panel.* http://books.google.com/books?hl=en&lr=&id=TNo-SeGpn7wC&oi=fnd&pg=PA81&dq=Climate+Change+2007:+Impacts,+Adaptation+ and+Vulnerability.+Contribution+of+Working+Group+II+to+the+Fourth+Assessmen t+Report+of+the+Intergovernmental+Panel+on+Climate+Change&ots=vP2.
- Marcogliese, D J. 2008. "The Impact of Climate Change on the Parasites and Infectious Diseases of Aquatic Animals." *Revue scientifique et technique (International Office of Epizootics)* 27(2): 467–84. http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/18819673.
- McKinley-Barnard, Sarah, Tom Andre, Masahiko Morita, and Darryn S. Willoughby. 2015. "Combined L-Citrulline and Glutathione Supplementation Increases the Concentration of Markers Indicative of Nitric Oxide Synthesis." *Journal of the International Society of Sports Nutrition* 12(1): 27. http://www.jissn.com/content/12/1/27.
- Norris, K. A., J. E. Schrimpf, J. L. Flynn, and S. M. Morris. 1995. "Enhancement of Macrophage Microbicidal Activity: Supplemental Arginine and Citrulline Augment Nitric Oxide Production in Murine Peritoneal Macrophages and Promote Intracellular Killing of Trypanosoma Cruzi." *Infection and Immunity* 63(7): 2793–96.
- Osowska, S. 2004. "Citrulline Increases Arginine Pools and Restores Nitrogen Balance after Massive Intestinal Resection." *Gut* 53(12): 1781–86. http://gut.bmj.com/cgi/doi/10.1136/gut.2004.042317 (December 10, 2017).

- Rapovy, Shannon M. et al. 2015. "Differential Requirements for L-Citrulline and l-Arginine during Antimycobacterial Macrophage Activity." *The Journal of Immunology* 195(7): 3293–3300. http://www.jimmunol.org/lookup/doi/10.4049/jimmunol.1500800.
- Rimando, Agnes M., and Penelope M. Perkins-Veazie. 2005. "Determination of Citrulline in Watermelon Rind." *Journal of Chromatography A* 1078(1–2): 196–200. http://linkinghub.elsevier.com/retrieve/pii/S0021967305009453 (November 29, 2016).
- Su, C, and R E Austic. 1999. "The Recycling of L-Citrulline to L-Arginine in a Chicken Macrophage Cell Line." *Poultry Science* 78(December): 353–55.
- Vadgama, J V, and D F Evered. 1992. "Characteristics of L-Citrulline Transport across Rat Small Intestine in Vitro." 32(4): 472–78.
- Wijnands, Karolina A.P. et al. 2015. "Arginine and Citrulline and the Immune Response in Sepsis." *Nutrients* 7(3): 1426–63.
- Wijnands, Karolina A P et al. 2012. "Citrulline a More Suitable Substrate than Arginine to Restore No Production and the Microcirculation during Endotoxemia." *PLoS ONE* 7(5): 1–11.
- Wright, P A, A Felskie, and P M Anderson. 1995. "Induction of Ornithine-Urea Cycle Enzymes and Nitrogen Metabolism and Excretion in Rainbow Trout (Oncorhynchus Mykiss) during Early Life Stages." *Journal of Experimental Biology* 198: 127–35.
- Wu, Guoyao et al. 2007. "Dietary Supplementation with Watermelon Pomace Juice Enhances Arginine Availability and Ameliorates the Metabolic Syndrome in Zucker Diabetic Fatty Rats." *The Journal of nutrition* 137(12): 2680–85. http://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pubmed/18029483.

APPENDIX



Gambar 7. Wadah pemeliharaan



Gambar 8. Proses pengisian air laut



Gambar 9. Tandon air laut

ANALISA STATISTIK

Biomasa Akhir

Table Analyzed	Final Biomass					
Data sets analyzed	A-C					
ANOVA summary						
F	0.7428					
P value	0.515					
P value summary	ns					
Significant diff. among means	No					
(P < 0.05)?	NO					
R squared	0.1985					
Duouun Formutho toot						
Brown-Forsythe test		1 (2 2				
F (DEn	DEQ)	1.032	6)			
P value	0.2717	(2	0)			
P value summary	ns					
Are SDs significantly different						
(P < 0.05)?	No					
Bartlett's test						
Bartlett's statistic (corrected)						
P value						
P value summary						
Are SDs significantly different						
(P < 0.05)?						
ANOVA table	SS	DF	MS	F (DFn	DFd)	P value
Treatment (between					6) =	
columns)	2752	2	1376	F (2	0.7428	P=0.5150
Residual (within columns)	11114	6	1852			
Total	13866	8				
Data summary						
Number of treatments	-					
(columns)	3					
Number of values (total)	9					

Pertumbuhan

Table Analyzed	Growth					
Data sets analyzed	A-C					
ANOVA summary						
F	5.051					
P value	0.0517					
P value summary	ns					
Significant diff. among means (P < 0.05)?	No					
R squared	0.6274					
Brown-Forsythe test						
		1.232				
F (DFn	DFd)	(2	6)			
P value	0.3563					
P value summary	ns					
Are SDs significantly different (P <						
0.05)?	No					
Bartlett's test						
Bartlett's statistic (corrected)						
P value						
P value summary	2					
Are SDs significantly different ($P < 0.05$)	?					
	22	DE	MC			Dyalua
ANOVA table		DF	1013	r (Drii	6) –	P value
Treatment (between columns)	2564	2	1282	F (2	5.051	P=0.0517
Residual (within columns)	1523	6	253.9			
Total	4088	8				
Data summary						
Number of treatments (columns)	3					
Number of values (total)	9					

FCR

Table Analyzed	FCR					
Data sets analyzed	A-C					
ANOVA summary						
F	0.02792					
P value	0.9726					
P value summary	ns					
Significant diff. among means (P < 0.05)?	No					
R squared	0.009222					
Brown-Forsythe test						
		0.1174				
F (DFn	DFd)	(2	6)			
P value	0.8912					
P value summary	ns					
Are SDs significantly different (P <	N .					
0.05)?	INO					
Partlatt's tast						
Bartlett's statistic (corrected)						
P value						
P value summary						
Are SDs significantly different	(P < 0.05)2					
	(1 < 0.05).					
ANOVA table	SS	DF	MS	F (DFn	DFd)	P value
					6) =	
Treatment (between columns)	0.000356	2	0.000178	F (2	0.02792	P=0.9726
Residual (within columns)	0.0382	6	0.006367			
Total	0.03856	8				
Data summary						
Number of treatments (columns)	3					
Number of values (total)	9					

SR

Table Analyzed	SR					
Data sets analyzed	A-C					
ANOVA summary						
F	1.253					
P value	0.3511					
P value summary	ns					
Significant diff. among means (P <	No					
B squared	0 2945					
	0.2515					
Brown-Forsythe test						
		0.6611				
F (DFn	DFd)	(2	6)			
P value	0.5502					
P value summary	ns					
Are SDs significantly different (P <						
0.05)?	No					
Bartlett's test						
Bartlett's statistic (corrected)						
P value					ļ	
P value summary					ļ	
Are SDs significantly different (P < 0.05)?				ļ	
					ļ	
ANOVA table	SS	DF	MS	F (DFn	DFd)	P value
Treatment (between columns)	227.4	2	113.7	F (2	6) = 1.253	P=0.3511
Residual (within columns)	544.7	- 6	90.78	. (–		
Total	772 1	8	50.70			
	,,2.1	5				
Data summary						
Number of treatments (columns)	3					
Number of values (total)	9					
, ,					1	1

Volume Flok

	Final Flock					
Table Analyzed	Volume					
Data sets analyzed	A-C					
ANOVA summary						
F	2.385					
P value	0.1729					
P value summary	ns					
Significant diff. among means (P <						
0.05)?	No					
R squared	0.4429					
Brown-Forsythe test						
		0.7406				
F (DFn	DFd)	(2	6)			
P value	0.5159					
P value summary	ns					
Are SDs significantly different (P <						
0.05)?	No					
Bartlett's test						
Bartlett's statistic (corrected)						
P value						
P value summary						
Are SDs significantly different (P < C	0.05)?					
ANOVA table	SS	DF	MS	F (DFn	DFd)	P value
					6) =	
Treatment (between columns)	65.72	2	32.86	F (2	2.385	P=0.1729
Residual (within columns)	82.67	6	13.78			
Total	148.4	8				
Data summary						
Number of treatments (columns)	3					
Number of values (total)	9					